ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 8, 2014
9:04 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns
VEVMBERS ABSENT

Representative Charisse MIlett

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NE S)

Publ i ¢ Def ender

Qui nlan Steiner - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Chi ef Admi nistrative Law Judge

Kat hl een A. Frederick - Pal ner
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO. 175(STA)
"An Act designating the official state bolt-action rifle."

- MOVED CSSB 175(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 20
Proclaimng April 2014 as Sexual Assault Awareness Mbonth.

- MOVED SCR 20 OQUJT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 175

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- Apri

8, 2014



SHORT TI TLE: OFFI Cl AL STATE BOLT- ACTI ON RI FLE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) HUGE NS

02/ 14/ 14 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 14 (S) STA

03/ 11/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 11/ 14 (S) Moved CSSB 175(STA) Qut of Committee
03/ 11/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 12/ 14 (S) STA RPT CS 3DP INR SAME TITLE
03/ 12/ 14 (S) DP: DYSON, COGHILL, G ESSEL

03/ 12/ 14 (S) NR: W ELECHOWSKI

03/ 28/ 14 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 28/ 14 (S) VERS| ON: CSSB 175( STA)

03/ 31/ 14 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 31/ 14 (H) STA

04/ 08/ 14 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SCR 20

SHORT TI TLE: SEXUAL ASSAULT AWARENESS MONTH
SPONSOR(s) :  FI NANCE

03/ 14/ 14 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 14/ 14 (S) STA

03/ 27/ 14 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 27/ 14 (S Moved SCR 20 Qut of Conmittee
03/ 27/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 28/ 14 (S) STA RPT  3DP

03/ 28/ 14 (S) DP: DYSON, W ELECHOWSKI, G ESSEL
03/ 28/ 14 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 28/ 14 (S) VERSI ON:  SCR 20

03/ 31/ 14 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 31/ 14 (H STA

04/ 08/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Appoi nt ee

Publ i ¢ Def ender

Central Ofice

Publ i ¢ Def ender Agency

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to position of
Publ i ¢ Def ender.

KATHLEEN A. FREDERI CK, Appoi ntee
Chi ef Adm nistrative Law Judge

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 8, 2014



Anchorage O fice

Ofice of Adm nistrative Hearings (QAH)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the position of
Chi ef Adm nistrative Law Judge.

ERI C HOLLEN, Staff

Senat or Charlie Huggins

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented CSSB 175(STA) on behalf of
Senat or Huggi ns, prine sponsor.

EDRA MORLEDCE, St af f

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SCR 20 on behalf of the Senate
Fi nance Comm ttee, sponsor, on which Senator Meyer is chair.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
9:03:48 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 9:04 a.m Representatives Keller, |saacson

Gattis, Hughes, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representative Kreiss-Tonkins arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGE S)
Publ i ¢ Def ender

9: 04: 04 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was the
confirmation hearing for the position of Public Defender.

9:04: 31 AM

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Appointee, Public Defender, Central Ofice,
Publ i ¢ Def ender Agency, Departnent of Adm nistration (DOA), said
he had served as public defender for eight years; the pending
appoi ntment would be his third term He said his entire |lega
career has been spent working for the Public Defender Agency.
He stated that public service has been rewarding, particularly
in the area of indigent defense, working to ensure fairness in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 8, 2014



the crimnal justice system He expressed enthusiasm for the
wor k he has done and his desire to continue it.

9:05:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmation of
Quinlan Steiner as public defender to the joint session for
consi derati on. [ There being no objection, the confirmati on was
advanced. |

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG S)
Ofice of Adm nistrative Hearings, Chief Adm nistrative Law

Judge

9: 06: 16 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that the next order of business was the
confirmation hearing for the position of Chief Admnistrative
Law Judge.

9: 06: 28 AM

KATHLEEN A. FREDERICK, Appointee, Chief Admnistrative Law
Judge, Anchorage Ofice, Ofice of Admnistrative Hearings
(OAH), Departnent of Admnistration (DOA), said if she was
confirmed, she would do her best to be an outstanding chief
adm nistrative | aw judge. She said she has been an attorney for
30 years, and during that time has handled a w de range of civil
law matters. She related that she enjoys the challenge of
mastering new areas of |aw. She said she has litigated cases
before adm nistrative agencies in state and federal courts for
over 20 years. She indicated that she has drafted |egislation
on behalf of clients and the Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion
(APCC) . She stated that she has also trained and nentored
attorneys and support staff for nore than two decades. She said
her three years serving on APOC nade her famliar with the
Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act, as well as the adjudicative
aspect of adm nistrative proceedi ngs.

IVS. FREDERI CK relayed her experience in nmanagerial and
supervi sorial positions. She further nmentioned her involvenent
as a contract nediator for the Alaska Court System She said
raising two children as a single nother and nanagi ng a busy |aw
practice has helped her hone her tine managenent skills. She
said she takes great pride in her work, which is an attribute

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 8, 2014



she said she would bring to the pending position. She stated
that she loves a challenge, and is attracted by the breadth and
volume of cases handled annually. She said she also is
attracted to the idea that she would have a role in finding ways
to make OAH as efficient and effective as possible. She not ed
that she has worked as a public advocate, nost recently for the
el derly.

9:10: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON thanked Ms. Frederick for being willing
to serve.

9:10: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said she is proud to know sonmeone from
Pal mer who would be willing to serve in this capacity.

9:11: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S characterized Ms. Frederick as "bright and
witty," and she thanked her for being willing to serve.

9:11: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKINS asked how M. Frederick would
respond if soneone applied political pressure on her regarding
how she conducted cases.

M5. FREDERICK answered that she is an ethical person who
considers all facts and circunstances, and she has never bent to
political or corporate pressure.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWI NS said it sounds like M. Frederick
has the background required for the position. He nentioned the
annual report published by OAH on January 31, 2014. He asked
Ms. Frederick if she had read the report and, if so, what her
reaction was to the recommendati on secti on.

M5. FREDERI CK replied that she had read the current report and
observed one of the recommendations had been for subpoena power
to anmend statutes, which she said would be an issue to discuss
with the former chief admnistrative |law judge, as well as the
current deputy and staff, to understand the reasoni ng behind the
recommendat i on. She said she is sure that there was careful
t hought given to the recommendati on. Regardi ng anendnent of the
Adm ni strative Procedure Act, she said statutes need to be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 8, 2014



consistent with each other to prevent appeals resulting from
i nconsi stenci es. She ventured that the subpoena power nay have
been inadvertently omtted, because it was repealed when the
boards were elimnated, and having the subpoena power would be
necessary to the functioning of the agency; however, she said
she would confirm that with those with whom she would be
wor ki ng. She said the final reconmmendation was to renove
permanent fund dividend (PFD) execution appeals from the
Adm ni strative Procedure Act with a different hearing process.
She reiterated that she would talk to those who had made the
recomendation to ensure that "that's a sound way of
proceedi ng. "

9: 15: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his understanding that MVs.
Frederick is his constituent. He observed that the report
reflects that "about half to three-quarters of the tinme is spent
either on Medicaid public assistance or child support.™ He
asked how nuch interaction "you" have wth the Ofice of
Orbudsman.

M5. FREDERI CK asked Representative Keller if he is asking how
much OAH has versus what she has had in the past.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER confirmed that was right.

M5. FREDERI CK responded that she currently does not know "how
much interaction it is"; however, she said she observed that
"that's about 25 percent of the caseload of the office." She
indicated that her goal would be to increase efficiency in the
three nost frequently heard areas.

9:17: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to advance the confirmation of
Kat hl een A Frederick as chief admnistrative |aw judge to the
joint session for consideration. [There being no objection, the
confirmati on was advanced. ]

9:17: 26 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from9:17 a.m to 9:19 a.m

SB 175- OFFI Cl AL STATE BOLT- ACTI ON RI FLE

9:19:30 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 8, 2014



CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was CS FCR
SENATE BILL NO 175(STA), "An Act designating the official state
bolt-action rifle."

9:19: 46 AM

ERIC HOLLEN, Staff, Senator Charlie Huggins, presented CSSB
175(STA) on behal f of Senator Huggins, prine sponsor. He stated
that wunder the proposed legislation, the Wnchester pre-1964
nodel 70 woul d becone the official state bolt-action rifle. He
indicated that the proposed bill was inspired by a constituent
of Senator Huggins, Jack O Connor, a witer for Qutdoor Life
Magazi ne, who called the gun "the rifleman's rifle."

MR. HOLLEN said CSSB 175(STA) would support the Second Amendnent
to the Constitution of the United States, which "Al aska holds
dear." He related that the Wnchester pre-1964 nodel 70 is
chanbered in 18 calibers, from .22 Hornet to .448 Wnchester
Magnum He said there are two versions of the gun: . 338
W nchester Magnum and .375 H&H Magnum which he indicated are
both designated "The Al askan.” He said the varied calibers of
the Wnchester pre-1964 nodel 70 nake it popular with Al aska
out doors peopl e.

9:21: 03 AM

MR. HOLLEN, in response to Chair Lynn, offered his understanding
that the Wnchester pre-1964 Mdel 70 first appeared in 1934,
but was not manufactured for public sale until 1936.

9:21: 37 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if there may be any problem with designating
one manufacturer's rifle over another.

MR. HOLLEN said he does not think so. He added that the aspects
of the Wnchester pre-1964 Mdel 70 nade it "very accurate off
the shelf,” and he opined that the firearm would represent
Al aska wel | .

CHAIR LYNN clarified his concern was about whether there may be
potential problems in designating one comercial product over
anot her .

MR. HOLLEN answered not to his know edge.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 8, 2014



9:23: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSSB 175(STA) out of
committee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
zero fiscal note. There being no objection, CSSB 175(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

SCR 20- SEXUAL ASSAULT AWARENESS MONTH

9:23:44 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was SENATE
CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 20, Proclaimng April 2014 as Sexua
Assault Awar eness Mbont h.

9:24:16 AM

EDRA  MORLEDGE, Staff, Senator Kevin Myer, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, presented SCR 20 on behalf of the Senate Finance
Comm ttee, sponsor, on which Senator Meyer is chair. She said
t he proposed concurrent resolution would proclaim April 2014 as
Sexual Assault Awareness Month. She stated that this is an
annual, national canpaign to raise awareness about sexual
assault and educate conmunities and individuals on how to
prevent sexual violence nationwi de. She said sexual violence is
a serious public health problem which affects mllions of wonen
and nen. She relayed that the Center for D sease Control (CDC)
reports that in the U S., one in five wonen and one in seventy-
one nmen has been a victim of violent sexual assault or wll be
in his/her lifetine. Further, nearly one in two wonen and one
in five nmen has experienced other forns of sexual violence at
some point. She said in Alaska, those rates are 2.5 tines the
nati onal average. She said statistics do not accurately reflect
the problem because many victinms do not tell the police or
report their experience to famly or friends.

M5. MORLEDGE stated that sexual violence inpacts health in nmany
ways; it can lead to long-term physical and nental health
probl ens. | ncreasing awareness about the crinme of sexual
assault and recognizing the enormty of the problemmy initiate
the healing process for victins and prevent further incidents
from occurring. She said the proposed legislation would be "a
small but significant step in educating the public and our
communities and lifting the veil of secrecy that so often hides
these horrific crinmes."”

9:26: 06 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 8, 2014



CHAIR LYNN asked why the bill proposed just April 2014, instead
of April in perpetuity.

M5. MORLEDGE indicated that bringing the discussion back before
the legislature each year would give the issue nore publicity,
whi ch may increase public awareness.

CHAI R LYNN asked if there was anyone el se who wi shed to testify.
9:26: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report SCR 20 out of committee
with individual recommendati ons and the acconpanying zero fiscal
not e. [ There being no objection, SCR 20 was reported out of
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.]

9:27:40 AM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:23
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 8, 2014



